

Dale A. Brueggemann
3251 E. Independence St.
Springfield, MO 65804-5105 U.S.A.
PHONE: 1(417) 849-4432
E-MAIL: dale.brueggemann@agmd.org

Dale A. Brueggemann, B.A., M.A., Ph.D.

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

I am a committed evangelical churchman with a Ph.D. in hermeneutics (OT) and have taught Bible and theology at various levels, both in the USA and abroad for the last 20 years. The bulk of my experience has been as a missionary-educator, where I've taught in everything from two-year certificate programs to M.Div., Th.M., and Ph.D. programs.

Degrees

B.A. Philosophy and Religion, Northwest Nazarene University (1979)
M.A. Religion (Bible), Westminster Theological Seminary (1983)
Ph.D. Hermeneutics and Biblical Exegesis (Old Testament), Westminster Theological Seminary (1995)

Experience

1972–present Assemblies of God minister (ordained 1975)
1989–1994 *Assistant Professor of Old Testament, Central Bible College*
1994–present Assemblies of God World Missions [AGWM]
1997–2001 *Executive Director, Eurasia Education Office (AGWM)*, supporting ministerial education throughout the AGWM Eurasia region (Europe, CIS & Baltic Republics, Middle East and North Africa, Central Asia, and Southern Asia). I taught at and consulted with emerging and maturing ministerial training institutions, especially around the former USSR and Warsaw Pact countries.
1996-2003 *Executive Director, Euro-Asian Theological Association [EATA]*, supporting efforts to achieve accreditation for emerging and maturing ministerial training institutions around Eurasia. I wrote the association's founding documents, manuals, and handbooks; organized and supervised the training of accreditation teams; and guided the first schools to their accreditation.
2002–present *Director, Eurasia Education Services (AGWM)*, supporting ministerial education throughout the reconfigured AGWM Eurasia region (CIS & Baltic Republics, Middle East and North Africa, Central Asia, and Southern Asia). I teach at and consult with emerging and maturing ministerial training institutions, including seminary, Th.M., and Ph.D. level programs. I've more recently begun to mentor, advise, and supervise Ph.D. students.
2002–2007 Visiting scholar at Tyndale House, Cambridge University, U.K.
2007–2008 AGWM Missionary-in-Residence, Central Bible College, Springfield, MO.

* * * * *

Education

1984–1995 Westminster Theological Seminary, Philadelphia, PA. Ph.D., Hermeneutics and Biblical Exegesis (Old Testament)
1980–1983 Westminster Theological Seminary, Philadelphia, PA. M.A. Religion (Bible)
1977–1979 Northwest Nazarene University, B.A. Philosophy and Religion

1967–1969 Vanguard University, B.A. studies in Music

Professional Experience

1994–present Missionary-Educator in the Assemblies of God World Missions (Eurasia region)
• Executive Director, Europe-Eurasia Education Office (1997–2001)
• Director, Eurasia Education Services (2001–present)
• Executive Director, Euro-Asian Theological Association (1996–2003)
• Visiting Scholar, Tyndale House, Cambridge University (2002–2007)

1992–1994 Sub-editor for *Bulletin for Biblical Research*
— Member of the translation committee for the *New Living Translation [NLT]*, working on the book of Numbers

1989–1994 Assistant Professor of Old Testament, Central Bible College

1988–1989 Bible Consultant and Technical Writer, TriStar Publishing, Fort Washington, PA. Technical and Bible consultant to a programming team producing an early version of CD-ROM Bible research software. Participating in designing the user interface and wrote the user manuals.

1988 Lecturer in Biblical Studies and Apologetics, Valley Forge Christian College, Phoenixville, PA.

1985–1988 Research Fellow, Center for Computer Analysis of Texts [CCAT], University of Pennsylvania. An SBL/NEA funded project that initiated efforts to do computerized biblical studies.

1984 Lecturer in Biblical Studies and Philosophy, Valley Forge Christian College, Phoenixville, PA.

1983–1984 Editor, Springhouse Publishers, Springhouse, PA. Editing medical training materials.

1976–1977 Associate Pastor, Crossroads Assemblies of God, Wilder, ID.

1972–1976 Pastor, Assemblies of God, Horseshoe Bend, ID.

1972–1976 Sectional Youth Representative, Assemblies of God.

1970–1971 Communications, U.S. Army, Stateside and Viet Nam.

Professional Memberships

Institute for Biblical Research
Society of Biblical Literature
Evangelical Theological Society
Tyndale Fellowship, United Kingdom

Honors and Fellowships

1985–1988 Research Fellow at Computer Assisted Tools for Septuagint Studies [CATTs] and Computer Assisted Tools for Computer Analysis of Texts [CCAT], University of Pennsylvania

1979 Marvin Cook Bible Award, to the “outstanding ministerial studies student of [my] class”

1977–1979 Member of Alpha Delta Sigma honor society

1978–1979 Teaching Assistant to the head of the department of Religion and Philosophy, Northwest Nazarene University.

Publications

2008 “Imagery, Protection.” In *Dictionary of the Old Testament: Wisdom, Poetry, and Writings*. Edited by Tremper Longman, III and Peter Ens. Downers Grove, Ill.: InterVarsity.

2008 “Notes on Job.” In *New Living Translation Study Bible*, 852–99. Wheaton, Ill.: Tyndale House Publishers.

2008 “Numbers.” In *Leviticus, Numbers, Deuteronomy*, 217–443. NLT Cornerstone Biblical Commentary. Wheaton, Ill.: Tyndale House Publishers.

2008 “Psalm Titles.” In *Dictionary of the Old Testament: Wisdom, Poetry, and Writings*. Edited by Tremper Longman, III and Peter Ens. Downers Grove, Ill.: InterVarsity.

2008 “Review of James K. Bruckner, *Jonah, Nahum, Habakkuk, Zephaniah* [NIVAC] (Zondervan, 2004).” *Calvin Theological Journal*, 43/1 April: 124–26.

- 2008 “Review of Mark J. Boda, *Haggai, Zechariah* [NIVAC] (Zondervan, 2004).” *Calvin Theological Journal*, 43/1 April: 123–24.
- 2007 *Pentecostal Perspectives on Dance-Worship*. Revised edition. Cambridge, UK: lulu.com.
- 2007 *Singers and Sages: Old Testament Poets and Wisdom Literature*. Cambridge, UK: Lulu.com.
- 2007 *Study Questions for Singers and Sages*. Cambridge, UK: Lulu.com.
- 2007 “Review of J. Richard Middleton, *The Liberating Image: The Imago Dei in Genesis 1* (Brazos, 2005).” *Calvin Theological Journal*, 42/2 November: 405–07.
- 2005 “The Evangelists and the Psalms.” In *Interpreting the Psalms: Issues and Approaches*, 263–78. Edited by Philip S. Johnston and David G. Firth. Leicester, England: Apollos/InterVarsity.
- 2003 “Israel Acquires Empire.” In *They Spoke from God: A Survey of the Old Testament*, 457–510. Edited by William C. Williams. Springfield, Mo.: Logion.
- 2003 “Sweet Singers and Sages: Israel’s Poetry and Wisdom.” In *They Spoke from God: A Survey of the Old Testament*, 511–54. Edited by William C. Williams. Springfield, Mo.: Logion.
- 2002 “Review of Baruch R. Levine, *Numbers 1–20* [AB]; Levine, *Numbers 21–36* [AB] (Doubleday, 1993, 2000); and R. Dennis Cole, *Numbers: An Exegetical and Theological Exposition of Holy Scripture* [NAC] (Broadman & Holman, 2000).” *Journal of the Evangelical Theological Society* 45/2 June: 348–50.
- 2002 “Review of William Millar, *Priesthood in Ancient Israel* (Chalice, 2001).” *Journal of the Evangelical Theological Society* 45/4 December: 685–86.
- 1999 “Research Paper Guide: A Guide to Writing and Documenting Biblical-Theological Research Papers.” In *Research Paper Guide*. 2nd revised edition. Sint-Pieters-Leeuw, Belgium: Photocopied.
- 1996 “Review of Ellis R. Brotzman, *Old Testament Textual Criticism: A Practical Introduction* (Baker 1994).” *Journal of the Evangelical Theological Society* 39: 338–41.
- 1995 “The Use of the Psalter in John’s Apocalypse.” Unpublished Ph.D. Diss. Philadelphia: Westminster Theological Seminary.
- 1989 “Brevard Childs’ Canon Criticism: An Example of Post-Critical Naivete.” *Journal of the Evangelical Theological Society* 32/3: 311–26.
- 1989 “Review of Elmer A. Martens, *Jeremiah* (Herald Press, 1986).” *Westminster Theological Journal* 51/1 Spring: 159–60.
- 1988 “Review of Elizabeth R. Achtemeier, *Nahum-Malachi* (John Knox, 1986).” *Westminster Theological Journal* 51/1 Spring: 190–92.
- 1988 “The Uses and Abuses of Word Studies.” *Paraclete* 22/2 Spring: 9–14.
- 1987 “Review of Daniel J. Simundson, *The Message of Job: A Theological Commentary* (Augsburg, 1986).” *Westminster Theological Journal* 49/2 Fall: 423–24.